
1 | P a g e

MEETING NOTES: 
Individuals needing assistance, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, should 
contact the City of La Porte Office of Community Development & Planning at (219) 362-8260 
by 10:00 am, Friday, preceding the meeting to make any necessary arrangements.   

Regular Meeting Agenda Items 
Members of the public should understand the Board of Zoning Appeals members may be 
unable to thoroughly review and consider materials delivered by the day of the public 
hearing.  The order of business shall be: 
A. Applicant Presentation B. Staff Report Presentation C. Public Comment
D. Applicant Response E. Board Discussion/Action

ITEM 1.  Call Meeting to Order 

ITEM 2.  Roll Call & Determination of Quorum 

ITEM 3.  Approval of Minutes: March 14, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

ITEM 4.   VARIANCE OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS #23-05 PETITION: TO REDUCE 
THE MINIMUM SOUTH SIDE YARD SETBACK FROM 8 FEET TO 2 FEET 
WHERE PREVIOUS ENCLOSED PORCH EXISTED AND TO ALLOW AN 
ADDITION TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE EXISTING SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE 
Applicant: Matthew Collins (David Ambers, Attorney) 
Property Owner: Bryon E. Ramey and Ann P. Ramey 
Location: 804 Pine Lake Avenue  
Staff Report: David Heinold 

ITEM 5.  Old Business 

ITEM 6.  New Business 

ITEM 7. Other Business 

A. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items

ITEM 8. Adjournment 

City of La Porte Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers, 801 Michigan Ave. 

www.cityoflaporte.com      (219) 362-8260

http://www.cityoflaporte.com/


BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

 

The Board of Zoning Appeals of the City of La Porte held a meeting on March 
14th, 2023, at 6:08 p.m. with Vice Chairperson Brian Kajer presiding in the 
absence of the Chairperson and the following in attendance: 

Vickie Gushrowski  

Drew Buchanan 
 

Brian Kajer opened the meeting with recognition of a quorum for the three 
members present. 
   

Approval of Minutes 

Brian Kajer asked the board if they had reviewed the minutes from the Feb. 
14th, 2023, meeting and if there were corrections or additions. Drew 
Buchanan made the motion to approve minutes and Vickie Gushrowski 2nd 
the motion. Motion passed three to zero.   

 

Item 4. VARIANCE OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS #23-02 PETITION: TO 
ALLOW A 381.6 SQUARE FOOT ELECTRONIC CHANGEABLE MESSAGE 
(EMX)SIGN ILLUMINATED BY LIGHT EMITTING DIODE (LED) ON THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTY ADJACENT TO A RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

Robert Miller approached and passed out photos. He explained the 
difference between the existing sign and what he is proposing. He talked 
about his company’s history in advertising and that they are looking to 
expand their digital footprint.  

Drew asked about the size of the board and David explained the ordinance 
of billboards and what the city standards are for static signs.  



David then showed a PowerPoint on what the proposed sign would look like 
in size to what is current from different distances on the road for drivers.  

David then read the conditions that would need to be met to approve the 
billboard.  

Drew then asked about the standards that have been laid out and if they will 
be met. Robert explained all the standards and how they will be met with 
the new billboard.  

Brian Kajer asked for public comment, there was none.  

Drew Buchanan made a motion to approve the Variance of Development 
Standards Petition #23-02 with the following staff recommended conditions 
and Vickie Gushrowski 2nd the motion. Motion passed three to zero. 

 

1.) That a maximum of one (1) Electronic Message Center (EMC) Sign 
illuminated by Light-Emitting Diode (LED) shall be permitted on the subject 
property adjacent to a residential zoning district.   

2.)  The maximum total sign area for the EMC Sign shall be 288 square 
feet. 

3.) The message on the EMC shall remain static a minimum of twenty (20) 
seconds and   not take longer than one (1) second to change the message.   

4.) The EMC sign shall be equipped with a sensor or other device that 
automatically determines the ambient light conditions to adjust the 
brightness of the sign to a maximum luminescence level is not more than 
three-tenths (0.3) footcandles measured at a distance of 170 feet away from 
the sign.    

5.) The EMC sign shall comply with all applicable requirements, 
conditions, and permit approval process from the Indiana Department of 
Transportation.   

 



 

Item 5. SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE #23-03 PETITION: TO ALLOW TATTOO 
ESTABLISHMENT 

Jake Morrel explained his petition for a tattoo establishment. 

David summarized the staff report and showed a PowerPoint on where this 
establishment would be located. 

A citizen approached and explained his concern on the potential of neon 
signs, and Jake Stated he doesn’t need any neon signs and that is no 
problem.  

Vickie Gushrowski made a motion to approve the Special Exception Use 
Petition #23-03 with the following staff recommended conditions and Drew 
Buchanan 2nd the motion. Motions passed three to zero. 
 
1.)  The use shall allow a tattoo establishment. 

2.)  The use shall operate between the hours from 8:00 AM to 10:00 PM.   

 

Item 6. VARIANCE OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS # 23-04 PETITION: TO 
REDUCE THE MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK FORM 25 FEET TO 5 FEET 

Jim White approached and he explained his case on why they would like the 
variance. 

David explained the staff report. 

Vickie Gushrowski motioned to approve the Variance of Development 
Standards Petition #23-04 and Drew Buchanan 2nd the motion. Motion 
passed three to zero.  
 

 

 



Item 7. USE VARIANCE #22-10 PETITION: TO ALLOW CONVENIENCE STORE 
WITH GASOLINE SALES 

The City Attorney explained that the petitioner emailed in and withdrew his 
petition.  There was no action taken on this petition.   

 

Old Business 

Brian Kajer asked if there was any old business. There was not any old 
business. 

 

New Business 

Brian Kajer asked if there was any new business. There was not any new 
business.  

 

Other Business 

Brian Kajer asked if there was any other business. There was not any other 
business.  

 

Adjournment 

Drew Buchanan made a motion to adjourn the meeting Vickie Gushrowski 
2nd the motion. Motion passed 3 to 0.   The meeting adjourned at 6:30 pm.   

         

Respectfully Submitted, 

          Brian Kajer, Vice Chairperson 

 

Nickolas Owens, Secretary 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

APPLICANT 

 
PROPERTY OWNER 

Name – Bryan E. & Ann P. Ramey Jtwros 
    

PREMISES AFFECTED 
Parcel Number - 46-06-27-426-003.000-043  
 

   
   Actual/approximate address or location from major streets – 804 Pine Lake Avenue 

Total Acreage – 0.31 acres Flood Zone on Site? - No 

Zoning of  
Subject Property – B2 

Use of Subject Property – Residential 

Zoning of 
Adjacent 
Properties 

North: B2 South: B2 East: B2 West: B2 

Land Use of 
Adjacent 
Properties 

 
  

  North: Yacht Club 
 

 
  South: Residential 

 
    East: Residential 

 
  West: Pine Lake 

 
SUMMARY:  The petitioner proposes to allow an approximately 10 foot by 18 foot two-story 
building addition to the existing single family dwelling within two (2) feet of the south side yard 
property line where the previous enclosed porch existed.  In addition, the petitioner proposes to 
construct an approximately 10 foot by 12 foot two-story building addition that meets the 8 foot 
minimum building setback from the south side yard on the subject property.   

HISTORY OF SITE:  Per the site aerial image, the parcel is 0.31 acres and is currently zoned 
B2 (General Commercial District).  Historically, the property has been used as a single family 
residential dwelling and previously had an enclosed porch on the southwest corner of the existing 
single family residential dwelling.  The petitioner’s existing house was constructed about two (2) 

ITEM 4.  Variance of Development Standards # 23-05 Petition  
to Reduce the Minimum South Side Yard Setback  
From 8 Feet to 2 Feet Where Previous Enclosed Porch Existed  
and to Allow an Addition to the Southwest Corner of the Existing  
Single Family Residence 
 Type of Request: Variance of Development Standards 

Staff Report: David Heinold 

Name – Matthew Collins (David Ambers, Attorney) 
   



2 | P a g e  
 

feet from the south side yard property line.  The subject property is located within the Waterfront 
View Protection Overlay Zoning District that sets a minimum requirement that the total of both 
side yards shall be at least 30% of the lot width.  The subject property requires a variance of 
development standards petition in order to allow the 10’x18’ two-story building addition to the 
existing single family dwelling within eight (8) feet of the south property line as required by 
Section 12.01 (d).   

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED VARIANCE OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:   
The petitioner is requesting a variance of development standards to allow the 10’x18’ two-story 
building addition to the existing single family dwelling located in the B2 General Commercial 
District and the Waterfront View Protection Overlay Zoning District within eight (8) feet of the 
south side yard property line as required by Section 12.01 (d) Building Side Yards.   

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  Article 7 shall be met for the proposed building addition 
to the existing single family dwelling.  Section 12.01 shall be met for the residential dwelling 
located within the Waterfront View Protection Overlay District in regards to side yard setbacks, 
height limits, and waterfront setback for buildings.  Section 22.04 (a) sets the minimum setback 
of development activity from streams, lakes, ponds, and wetlands.  According to Section 22.04 
(b), the minimum waterfront setback for the proposed building addition is approximately 60 feet 
from the ordinary high water mark.  On January 10, 2023, the Board of Zoning Appeals 
approved the Use Variance Petition to allow the building addition to the rear southwest corner of 
the existing single family dwelling located in the B2 General Commercial District.  The Use 
Variance Petition was approved to allow the building addition to the rear southwest corner of the 
existing single family dwelling with the requirement to meet the minimum building setbacks 
identified in Section 7.04, 12.01, and 22.04.  The approval of the requested variance of 
development standards to reduce the minimum south side yard setback from 8 feet to 2 feet will 
allow construction of the proposed 10’x18’ two-story building addition.   

SITE REVIEW FINDINGS:  Site review was not required for the proposed variance of 
development standards due to the nature of the proposed use on the subject property.   

DECISION CRITERIA:   
 
(1) The approval will not be injurious to the public health, safety, morals, and general 
welfare of the community; 
The approval of the requested variance of development standards will be injurious to the public 
health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community.  The proposed reduced side yard 
building setback from 8 feet to 2 feet where the previous enclosed porch existed will negatively 
impact adjacent properties with regards to Section 12.01 Waterfront View Protection Overlay 
Zoning District.  The proposed building addition to the existing single family dwelling will 
negatively impact views of the lake.  The approval of the requested variance will detract from the 
intent of the Waterfront View Protection Overlay District to protect community character of 
waterfront areas by maintaining views of lakes from public roadways.   



3 | P a g e  
 

(2) The use and value of the area adjacent to the property will not be affected in a 
substantially adverse manner; and 
The use and value of the area adjacent to the property will be affected in a substantially adverse 
manner with a reduced side yard setback to allow construction of the proposed building addition 
to the existing single family dwelling where the previous enclosed porch existed.  There is a 
distance of about 14 feet between the petitioner’s existing single family dwelling and the existing 
single family dwelling on the adjacent property to the immediate south.  The proposed building 
addition extending 10 feet from the southwest corner of the existing single family dwelling 
within 2 feet of the south side property line where the previous enclosed porch existed will 
negatively impact the use and value of the adjacent property as a single family dwelling in the 
Waterfront View Protection Overlay Zoning District.   

(3) The strict application of the terms of the zoning ordinance will result in practical 
difficulties in the use of the property.   
The strict application of the terms of the zoning ordinance with the 8-foot minimum side yard 
building setback will not result in practical difficulties in the use of the property as a single 
family residence.  The eight-foot minimum side yard setback does not limit the petitioner’s use 
of the subject property as a single family dwelling on a rectangular lot shape.  The proposed 
building addition may be constructed in accordance with the zoning ordinance in a reasonable 
manner.  The approval of the requested variance would detract from the intent of the zoning 
ordinance to protect waterfront neighborhoods from overbuilding with excessively large 
buildings on small waterfront lots that are out of scale with the established character of the 
neighborhood.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff finds that the requested variance of development standards petition to reduce the minimum 
side yard setback from 8 feet to 2 feet on the south property line does not meet the intent of the 
Waterfront View Protection Overlay Zoning District to protect views of the lake.  Staff 
recommends denial of Variance of Development Standards #23-05 Petition.   

Submitted to the Board of Zoning Appeals April 6th, 2023. 

 














	BZA-Apr11-2023-Agenda
	23-05_Staff Report - 804 Pine Lake Ave - Variance of Development Standards
	VAR_23-05
	Site Plan
	Attachment D - Evaluation Standards
	Project Summary
	Aerial Map
	Application

